ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 30, 2011
1:31 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair

Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan

Senat or John Coghi |

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MCGuire
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 15

"An Act relating to penalties for certain alcohol offenses
i nvolving persons under 21 years of age commtted by a sex
of fender or child kidnapper.™

- MOVED CSSB 15(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 101

"An Act adopting the Alaska Entity Transactions Act; relating to
changing the form of entities, including corporations,
partnerships, limted liability conpanies, business trusts, and
ot her organizations; anending Rule 79, Alaska Rules of GCvil
Procedure, and Rules 602(b)(2), 602(c), and 605.5, Al aska Rules
of Appellate Procedure; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED SB 101 QUT OF COW TTEE
SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 82

"An Act relating to the procedures and jurisdiction of the
Department of Health and Social Services for the care of

children who are in state custody; relating to court
jurisdiction and findings pertaining to children who are in
state custody; and nodifying the licensing requirenments for

foster care."
- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 110

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 30, 2011



"An Act relating to human trafficking; and relating to
sentencing and conditions of probation in crimnal cases
i nvol vi ng sex offenses.”

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BILL NO. 86

"An Act relating to the protection of property of persons under
disability and mnors; relating to the crinme of violating a
protective order concerning certain vul nerable persons; relating
to aggravating factors at sentencing for offenses concerning a
victim 65 vyears or older; relating to the protection of
vul nerabl e adults; amending Rule 12(h), Alaska Rules of Crimnal
Procedure; anmending Rule 45(a), Alaska Rules of Crimnal
Procedure; anending Rule 65, Alaska Rules of Civil Procedure;
amending Rule 17, Alaska Rules of Probate Procedure; anending
Rule 9, Alaska Rules of Admnistration; and providing for an
effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 15

SHORT TITLE: SEX OFFENDER/ UNDERAGE ALCOHOL OFFENSE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MEYER

01/ 19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 11

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 11 (S) HSS, JUD

03/ 16/ 11 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 16/ 11 (S) Moved CSSB  15(HSS) Qut of Committee
03/ 16/ 11 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 18/ 11 (S) HSS RPT CS 4DP  SAME TITLE
03/ 18/ 11 (S) DP: DAVIS, MEYER, EGAN, DYSON
03/ 18/ 11 (S) FIN RPT CS #DP #DNP #NR #AM

03/ 18/ 11 (S) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD

03/ 28/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 28/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 28/ 11 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 30/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
BILL: SB 101

SHORT TI TLE: ENTI TY TRANSACTI ONS ACT
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) PASKVAN

03/ 14/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 30, 2011



03/ 14/ 11 (S) JUD, FIN

03/ 25/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 25/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 25/ 11 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 30/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
BILL: SB 82

SHORT TI TLE: FOSTER CARE LI CENSI NG STATE CUSTODY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

02/ 04/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 04/ 11 (S) HSS, JUD

03/ 11/ 11 (S) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED- REFERRALS
03/ 11/ 11 (S) HSS, JUD

03/ 14/ 11 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 14/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 14/ 11 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 16/ 11 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

03/ 16/ 11 (S) Moved CSSSSB 82(HSS) Qut of Committee
03/ 16/ 11 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 18/ 11 (S) HSS RPT CS 5DP  SAME TITLE

03/ 18/ 11 (S) DP: DAVIS, MEYER, ELLIS, EGAN, DYSON
03/ 30/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 110
SHORT TI TLE: HUMAN TRAFFI CKI NG SEX OFFENSES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOSKI

03/ 21/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 21/ 11 (S) JuD, FIN
03/ 30/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, St aff

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 15 on behal f of the sponsor.

JEFF STEPP, Staff

Senat or Joe Paskvan

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding SB 101.

CELESTE HODGE, Staff

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 30, 2011



Senat or Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 82 on behal f of the sponsor.

JAN RUTHERDALE, Assistant Attorney General

Cvil Division

Department of Law (DQL)

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 82.

AVMANDA METI VI ER, St at ewi de Coor di nat or

Facing Foster Care in Al aska

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 82.

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding SB 82 as
sponsor of conpani on | egislation.

TRACY SPARTZCAMPBELL, Deputy Director

Ofice of Children's Services (OCS)

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 82.

LAUREN RICE, Director of Public Affairs

Covenant House

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 82.

REG NA CHENAULT, representing herself
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 82.

ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General

Crimnal Division

Departnent of Law

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 110.

QUI NLAN STEI NER, Director

Al aska Public Defender Agency

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 110.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 30, 2011



DOUG GARDNER, Director

Legi sl ative Legal Services

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding SB 110.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:31: 09 PM

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:31 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Paskvan, Coghill, Welechowski and Chair
French.

SB  15- SEX OFFENDER/ UNDERAGE ALCOHOL OFFENSE

1: 31: 49 PM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 15 and asked for
a notion to adopt the proposed work draft conmmttee substitute
(CS

1:32: 45 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN nmoved to adopt CS for SB 15, |abeled 27-
LSO119\E, as the working docunent.

CHAI R FRENCH obj ect ed for di scussion purposes.

1:33: 06 PM

CHRI STI NE MARASI GAN, staff to Senator Kevin Meyer, sponsor of SB
15, said there was one change to the CS, version E. The change
is on line 9, and nakes clear that this bill applies to soneone
who was required to register as a sex offender or «child
ki dnapper under AS 12.63.

CHAI R FRENCH summari zed that the |anguage "by a person required
to register” is inserted and it addresses the concern the
Depart ment of Law voi ced.

CHAI R FRENCH renoved his objection and version E was before the
comittee.

1:34: 06 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI rnoved to report CSSB 15, version E, from
commttee with individual recommendations and attached fiscal
not e(s).

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 30, 2011



CHAI R FRENCH announced that w thout objection, CSSB 15(JUD)
noved fromthe Senate Judiciary Standing Commttee.

At ease from1:34 p.m to 1:35 p. m

SB 101- ENTI TY TRANSACTI ONS ACT

1: 35: 14 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced t he consi derati on of SB 101.

SENATOR COCGHILL said his staff found a reference in the repealer
section that appeared to be incorrect; AS 10.26.670 should be AS
10. 06. 670.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if the error is <confined to just the
sectional analysis.

SENATOR COGHI LL answered no; he believes it is in the bill
itself.

1:38:14 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN said Sec. 06.26.670 deals with the revised
Al aska Trust Conpany Act. This is a portion of the statute that
would inpact trust law Sec. 26.06 deals wth the organic
change. He explained that it's necessary to look at nore than
just the corporate section.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if 10.26.670 is in statute.

1:39:47 PM

JEFF STEPP, staff to Senator Paskvan, confirnmed that there is a
m stake in the sectional analysis, but it's correct in the bill.
He added that the sectional has been corrected for the next
commttee of referral.

CHAI R FRENCH expressed satisfaction with the bill and asked for
a notion.

1:41: 08 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noved to report SB 101 from the conmittee
with individual recomendations and attached fiscal note(s).
There being no objection, SB 101 noved from the Senate Judiciary
St andi ng Comm ttee.

At ease from1l:41 p.m to 1:42 p. m

SB 82- FOSTER CARE LI CENSI NG STATE CUSTODY

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 30, 2011



1: 42: 16 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced t he consi derati on of SB 82

1:42: 42 PM
CELESTE HODGE, staff to Senator Bettye Davis, sponsor of SB 82,
said the bill nodi fies various provisions of Title 47

prioritizing the needs of <children in state custody. This
| egislation seeks to achieve permanency for older children in
foster care. Permanency for <children in the custody of the
Ofice of Children's Services (OCS) is best achieved through
reunification with the child' s parent, or failing that option,
t hrough adoption or guardianship. If these three options are not
avai l abl e, another is through Another Planned Pernmanent Living
Arrangenment (APPLA). This bill seeks to ensure that APPLA is not
chosen wunnecessarily, by providing guidelines to OCS and the
court as to when APPLA shoul d be used.

The bill also creates a statutory presunption that siblings are
placed in the same hone when possible. Wen this is not
possi ble, an OCS enployee nust docunment the steps taken in
trying to do so.

Wen OCS files a notion to release a child from state custody
before the custody order expires, this bill requires OCS and the
court to take extra steps to insure that the child and guardian
ad litem have anple notice of the notion and that the release is
in the child s best interest.

If a potential foster honme cannot neet the building code
requirenents to be a licensed foster care hone, this bill allows
a variance as long as the honme is consistent with construction
of other honmes in the comunity and is otherwse a safe
environment for the child.

This bill also requires that paperwrk for foster parent
licensing be streamined as nuch as possible. The bill also
i ncludes changes to the statute providing for retention of
jurisdiction by a court to nmke it <consistent wth 2010
| egislation to extend departnental custody or supervision to age
21.

She noted that SB 82 carries a zero fiscal note.

1:45: 20 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked if she had a sectional analysis.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 30, 2011



M5. HODCGE replied that she had a sumary, but soneone from the
Department of Law was avail able to answer any questi ons.

1:46: 12 PM

JAN RUTHERDALE, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Cvil D vision,
Departnent of Law (DOL), said Section 2, page 2, ensures that
when the court is present at a permanency hearing and it finds
that APPLA is the permanent plan, the court actually finds there
is a conpelling reason for the plan.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if APPLA is emanci pati on.

M5. RUTHERDALE replied it <could lead to enancipation. It
basically says that the child will remain in foster care unti
rel eased from custody. A child could ask to be enancipated at
age sixteen and a half, or he or she could choose to stay with
the foster famly.

CHAI R FRENCH asked how permanent a "permanent plan" is.

M5. RUTHERDALE answered any plan can change. A permanent APPLA
plan could al so change; the point is to state that "this is the
per mnent plan."

CHAI R FRENCH asked if the purpose of this anendnent is to show a
conpel l'i ng need for APPLA.

1:50: 25 PM

M5. RUTHERDALE answered vyes; the intent is to require a
conpel ling reason for APPLA. She said that Section 3 reiterates
the inportance of keeping siblings together. Section 4 is a
revisor's suggestion, to make the wordi ng consi stent.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if the problem is that they're no |onger
m nors.

M5. RUTHERDALE replied in 1998 there was a mmjor overhaul and

one decision was to change "mnor" to "child." She explained
that this is a housekeepi ng change. Wenever there is a change
to a bill, "child" is changed to "mnor." A child is defined as

sonmeone 18 or under. The revisor's part has to do with line 17
"past 19 vyears of age but not extending beyond the 21st
bi rt hday. "

1:52: 47 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noved to adopt Amendnent 1, | abel ed 27-
LSO500\ E. 1.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 30, 2011



AMENDMENT 1

OFFERED | N THE SENATE
TO CSSSSB 82()

Page 3, lines 16 - 17:

Delete "[AN] additional one-year periods [PERI QD]
of supervision past [AGE] 19 years of age that do not
extend beyond the person's 21st birthday if continued”

Insert "an additional one-year period of custody
or supervision past [AGE] 19 years of age and
additional one-year periods of custody that do not
extend beyond the person's 21st birthday if continued
custody or"

Page 3, line 20:
Del ete "m nor"
Insert "child [ M NOR]"

Page 4, lines 3 - b&:

Delete "[AN] additional one-year periods [PERI OD]
of supervision past [AGE] 19 years of age that do not
extend beyond the person's 21st birthday if continued”

Insert "an additional one-year period of custody
or supervision past [AGE] 19 years of age and
additional one-year periods of custody that do not
extend beyond the person's 21st birthday if continued
cust ody or"

Page 4, line 8, follow ng "placed":
Insert "in the custody or"

Page 4, lines 10 - 13:
Delete "[AN] additional one-year periods [PER OD] of
supervi si on past [ACGE] 19

years of age that do not extend beyond the
person's 21st birthday if continued"

Insert "an additional one-year period of custody
or supervision past [AGE] 19 years of age and
additional one-year periods of custody that do not
extend beyond the person's 21st birthday if continued
cust ody or"

Page 5, lines 10 - 11

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- March 30, 2011



Delete "Unless the child, depart ment, and

guardian ad litem agree to a release from custody
without a notion and with less than 30 days' notice
t he"

| nsert "The"

Page 5, line 12:
Del ete "who is under 19 years of age"

Page 5, line 13, follow ng "departnent":

Insert ", before the date custody is ordered to
end, "
Page 5, line 14, following "is":

| nsert "over 16 years of age and"

Page 5, line 15, following "filed":
Insert "unless the parties agree to a shorter
noti ce period"

Page 5, following line 19:

I nsert a new subsection to read:

"(r) When custody of a child who has been
committed to the custody of the departnent is due to
expire, the department shall file a notice of release
with the court 30 days before the date of release
unless the parties agree to a shorter notice period

and distribute the notice to the parties, including
the child if the child is 16 years of age or ol der and
avai |l abl e.”

Rel etter the follow ng subsections accordingly.
CHAI R FRENCH obj ect ed for discussion purposes.

M5. RUTHERDALE said this bill recognizes that custody can go up
to age 21.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if the anendnent is supported by
Representative Gara and the bill sponsor. Both concurred.

1:54:19 PM

M5. RUTHERDALE said Section 5 has to do with the licensing
provisions and nakes sure that when a court 1is considering
foster care, it can consider whether a child should be placed
with a famly nenber. This clarifies that waivers and variances
can be allowed for famly nenbers.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 30, 2011



1: 55: 49 PM
Section 6 is a new section.

Subsection (0) sets up the general rule that guardi anship and
adoption is the hope if reunification fails.

Subsection (p) clarifies that APPLA does not apply to young
children, only to children 16 years or older. It is a last-ditch
opti on when others don't apply.

Subsection (g) says when an older child is getting ready to be
rel eased from state custody that child nust be given notice of
rel ease. Before OCS can file release from custody, it nust give
30 days notice. This gives the child 40-60 days advance notice.
It also allows the parties to request a shorter notice if
everyone is in agreenent. It is inportant that the release is in
the best interest of the child.

The rest of the anmendnent goes to subsection (qgq). Only the court
has the power to anend its own orders.

2: 00: 08 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked if subsection (q), line 10 would read "The
departnment may rel ease.”

M5. RUTHERDALE answered yes. And then in the anmendnent on page
2, line 20, it says "unless the parties agree to a shorter
notice period."

CHAIR FRENCH asked if it's line 21 of the anendnent.

M5. RUTHERDALE answered yes, and in the actual bill it is on
page 5. On the anendnent page 2, line 11, deleting "who is under
19 years of age" is included so that all children will receive

notice, including 19 and 20 year ol ds.

Page 2, line 14: that insertion clarifies that OCS is trying to
end custody early.

Page 2, line 17-18: the insertion of over 16 years of age
clarifies this is the age group that they are trying to focus on
and reach.

Page 2, line 19: adds a new subsection (r) which recognizes that
custody can end in two ways.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 30, 2011



CHAI R FRENCH asked for clarification that prior subsection (r)
will be del eted

M5. RUTHERDALE answered no; there wll be renunbering. She
explained that this new subsection covers the situation of
automatic | apse of custody.

Subsection (s) says that siblings should be kept together
whenever possi bl e.

CHAI R FRENCH asked about the age of majority on page 6.
M5. RUTHERDALE replied it is 18.

CHAI R FRENCH asked why it doesn't say 18.

M5. RUTHERDALE asked where he was | ooking in the bill.
CHAI R FRENCH read "age of mpjority."

M5. RUTHERDALE confirmed the age of majority is 18.

2:05: 05 PM
MS. RUTHERDALE returned to the bill.

Page 5, line 28: gives exanples of what conpelling reasons could
be. She noted that it is not an exclusive |ist.

Subsection (t) defines APPLA

2: 06: 28 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked if AS 47.10.080 is about the declaration
of state custody.

CHAI R FRENCH answered that this is the statutory reference.

M5. RUTHERDALE said that is the provision that allows full
cust ody, as opposed to supervi sion.

She continued with Section 7 which has to do with foster care
licensing. It streamines the application process and states
that it shouldn't be overly restrictive.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked what the rule to date has been on the
application process

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 30, 2011



M5. RUTHERDALE replied this section of the bill does not
substantively change what 1is currently happening. It nakes
changes to the statute. As long as the hone is safe it is
inmportant to keep the child with the famly.

SENATOR COGHI LL wondered whether they are doing better or worse.
He asked for confirmation that it is codifying an ongoing
effort.

M5. RUTHERDALE answered yes.

2:09: 27 PM

AMANDA METIVIER, Statew de Coordinator, Facing Foster Care in
Al aska, testified in support of SB 82. She highlighted the
provision on APLA -- putting restrictions on APLA gives ol der
youth nore of a chance to be adopted. Everyone needs a famly.

In terns of early release from custody, they have had a nunber
of youth over the past year that have been rel eased and were not
notified until the day of release. This |eaves sone youth
honmel ess. It is inportant to notify youth and make sure that
t hey have i nput.

Keepi ng siblings together is also very inportant, especially for
children who have experienced abuse in the famly.

2:13:32 PM
CHAIR FRENCH renoved his objection and seeing no further
obj ection, announced Amendnent 1 is adopt ed.

2:13: 52 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARA i ntroduced hi nsel f.

CHAI R FRENCH asked what led himto file the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA explained that the ideas cane from M.
Metevier. They put in the provision that would nake it necessary
to sign off before separating siblings. The APPLA provision is
huge, because the goal of foster care is to try and find a
per manent placenent in a famly. APPLA neans they have given up.
The head of OCS has witten an article stating that APPLA has
been overused. Sonetines there is a very good placenent in a
village for a child, but the house does not neet building codes
whi ch nost honmes in the area don't neet. This bill now allows a
variance if it is the best placenent for the child and is safe.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 30, 2011



CHAI R FRENCH asked what percentage of foster care is decided by
t he courts and OCS.

M5. RUTHERDALE answered she did not understand the question.

CHAI R FRENCH asked for confirmation that a judge is not involved
in every deci sion.

M5. RUTHERDALE replied OCS makes the decision on placenent, and
the court inplenents the decision.

CHAI R FRENCH said the witten guidelines are for OCS to fol |l ow.
MS. RUTHERDALE said yes. OCS has to notify 30 days in advance.

2:18: 23 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL wondered if subsection (q) would be another
burdeni ng standard on top of these standards.

M5. RUTHERDALE replied there is no change in the standards. She
expl ained that there is already a court rule.

SENATOR COGHILL asked if this starts a new, nore conplex
process.

M5. RUTHERDALE replied that she doesn't think so.

2:19:58 PM

TRACY SPARTZCAMPBELL, Deputy Director, Ofice of Children's
Services (OCS), Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS),
said that there has been excellent testinony. This wll help
streanli ne sone of the practices.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if the departnent supports the bill.

M5. SPARTZCAMPBELL replied the departnment is neutral on the
bill.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked on page 5 under conpelling reasons for
APPLA, if it's a new approach to include the child s specific
request for emanci pation.

MS. SPARTZCAMPBELL replied when |ooking at pernmanency for ol der
youth, OCS | ooks at the youth's interests and desires.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if she had heard of any opposition to the
bill.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 30, 2011



M5. SPARTZCAMPBELL replied that she has not.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI nentioned the departnent's neutral position
on the bill and asked if she believes that this is a good thing
or a bad thing.

M5. SPARTZCAMPBELL replied OCS has been involved wth the
sponsor and the bill is aligned with their work.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI said every tinme the adm nistration appears
before a commttee the representative remains neutral on the
bill. He asked if this is a directive that departnents are not
supposed to take a position on the bill.

IVB. SPARTZCAMPBELL replied on this particular bill t he
departnent is neutral

CHAI R FRENCH asked if the departnment can live with the bill.
M5. SPARTZCAMPBELL replied yes.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked what standard the departnent is follow ng
to remain neutral.

MS. SPARTZCAMPBELL replied the department remains neutral but is
confortable with the | anguage.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked what standard needs to be nmet in order for
the departnent to support the bill.

M5. SPARTZCAMPBELL replied she could not answer that.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if it is her job to determ ne whether the
departnment remains neutral on a bill.

MS. SPARTZCAMPBELL answer ed no.

CHAIR FRENCH said it is discouraging when the admnistration
t akes no position. The Legislature is | eft wondering why.

2:24:59 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI added that the Legislature spends a |ot of
time on these bills and in terns of efficiency, t he
adm ni stration needs to state whether it supports a bill or not.
It's a working rel ati onshi p.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- March 30, 2011



CHAI R FRENCH noted that the adm nistration is pretty consistent
about supporting its own bills.

M5. RUTHERDALE said that DOL does not take a position on bills.
She said that every suggestion she made, and every change that
OCS nade, was incorporated into the bill.

SENATOR PASKVAN said that he is taking this to nean that the
| anguage in the bill is the best that can be achi eved.

M5. RUTHERDALE replied that is correct. She said that as a

practicing | awer she does not want a bill that will cause any
harm and she does not believe that this bill will do so.
2:28:13 PM

CHAIR FRENCH noted there is support from many different
associations, such as the Al aska Association of Homes for
Children, the Advisory Board on Al coholism and Drug Abuse, the
Nati onal Association of Social W rkers, the Al aska Behavi oral
Health Association, Alaska Children's Services, and Denal
Fam |y Services.

CHAI R FRENCH announced that he would hold SB 82 in commttee in
order to see a docunent with the anendnent i ncl uded.

SB 110- HUMAN TRAFFI CKI NG SEX OFFENSES

2:29: 11 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced t he consi derati on of SB 110.

2:29:19 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said the commttee has heard that there are
human traffickers targeting young Native girls, and it is a
serious problem He noted that putting someone on a plane froma
village to Anchorage for the purpose of sex trafficking should

be made illegal. There is a trafficking law, but it only applies
to transporting soneone from out of state, not instate. He noted
that the bill does a few things: Section 1 changes human

trafficking in the first degree by adding a provision for
persons under age 18 and increasing the penalty for that; this
section also adds the word "enticing."

Section 2 also adds a provision about "entices", and it adds

that to "move from one place to another in the state"
constitutes the crinme of human trafficking.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- March 30, 2011



He noted that there are concerns on the broad nature of the
| anguage. He feels that encouraging soneone to nove from one
part of the state to another is just as serious as encouraging
themto nove from Seattle to Al aska.

Anot her major provision is in Section 8, which says a judge
should have authority to renove sex offenders who live near
schools, but is not a blanket application to all convicted sex
of f enders.

2:34:21 PM

LAUREN RICE, Director of Public Affairs, Covenant House Al aska
(CHA), testified in support of SB 110. CHA offers shelter for
unacconpani ed yout h--enmergency shelter, food, healthcare, access
to permanent housing. It is located in Anchorage, but about 44
percent of the children come from outside of Anchorage and
al nost 45 percent are Al aska Nati ve.

Covenant House Al aska began taking an active role in conbating
human trafficking about five years ago. Both the Anchorage
Police Departnment (APD) and the FBI have given them long term
trafficking prevention strategies. CHA has witnessed a visible
decrease around its area, but this is still very prevalent in
the state. CHA has hel ped kids comng from other countries, out
of state, and in state. Youth in need of protection against
active human trafficking are identified on a nonthly basis.

She noted the roots of trafficking are found in childhood
trauma; the vast mpjority of youth being trafficked are victins
of sexual or physical violence in their younger years. The issue
requires a holistic approach to really protect Alaska's
children. One young wonan told CHA staff she could stay at hone
and be raped by her grandfather, or she could be paid for the
same act. Covenant House Alaska is commtted to giving youth
choi ces beyond human traffi cking.

2:39: 07 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked what the scope of the problemis within the
st at e.

M5. RICE replied CHA used to collect data on an informal basis
and have becone nore sophisticated about it. They wanted to nmake
sure that they had services to hel p, depending on the answers to
t hese questions. She said they know that about 50 percent of the
girls in their facility have been sexually abused, and 35
percent of their kids (both male and female) have engaged in
"survival sex"™ or informal prostitution in order to get the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 30, 2011



cormodities that they need. O those, probably half have been
tied to active trafficking situations. But that nunber is truly
a guess; it used to be significantly nore visible and has becone
| ess so because APD has targeted individuals who were hanging
around outside the shelter and targeting Kkids. However, they
know that kids are still being trafficked on the Internet, and
there is proof of that.

2:41: 51 PM

REG NA CHENAULT, representing herself, testified in support of
SB 110. She is a trauma surgeon who has treated patients who
have experienced violent sexual crines. She serves on the state
violent crinmes board, and |ast year Sexual Assault Against
M nors were the highest growng category of crines. They don't
know if that 1is due to increased reporting or increased
occurrence of assaults. She also serves on the State Traumm
Comm ttee, where they are tallying injuries.

She said she is a nother of three and fears this could happen to
her children, because it crosses all groups and all |ines. She
noted that 85 percent of Alaska Natives serving a prison
sentence for sexual assault of mnors were sexually assaulted
thensel ves as nminors; this is a cycle the state needs to end.
Traffickers are even targeting children who hang out at malls.
She said that the definition of trafficking should be strong

and should include trafficking within the state. She noted the
Webster Case; there are victins who now have children, drug
dependency, and |ifelong STDs.

She recently learned that a group of Koreans are targeting
children in the villages. There's a schenme set up where a
custoner cannot get to the point of having sex with a child
until they first hire an adult prostitute and have sex with him
or her. In this way, they ensure it's not a sting operation.
This ring seens to be the fastest growing group that is
targeting children in Al aska.

2:48: 20 PM

ANNE CARPENETI, Crimnal Division, Departnent of Law said that
this is a serious problemin the state. She said she had a | ong
conversation with Sergeant Lacey from APD and |earned that the
problem is enforcenent. For her, trafficking is noving
i ndi viduals from one place to another. But the new trend is what
used to be called "pinping" or "pronoting prostitution.”

CHAI R FRENCH asked where pronoting prostitution cones in, and
what is mssing fromthat statute.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 30, 2011



M5. CARPENETI replied nothing; pronoting prostitution in the
first degree is an unclassified felony if the person is under
age 18. It is nuch easier to prove pronoting prostitution than
trafficking. Under this bill DOL has to prove force, deception

and novenent for trafficking. This does not attack the problem
of pronoting prostitution. It can be called trafficking, but it
is really promoting prostitution of young wonen. Sone young
wonen actually come to urban areas on their own wth no support,
and they becone easy victins. Right now, she said, no prosecutor
woul d bring charges under this bill when he or she could bring
charges under pronoting prostitution

2:51:29 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL said one of the problens that he sees is that
some people are surviving off of sexual behavior. He asked if
this would still be under the prostitution issue or would the
trafficking bill take care of this.

MS. CARPENETI replied if you induce or cause sonmeone to engage
in comrercial sex, it would be considered prostitution. The
problem is getting the victine to let them know who the
perpetrators are. She said the range of penalty for a first
felony conviction for pronoting prostitution of a child under
age 18 is 20-30 years, depending on the age of the victim If
the victimis under 13, the penalty would be 25-35 years; if the
victimis between 13 and 18, the penalty would be 20-30 years.
Current |aw takes this very seriously.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he has a slightly different take on
it. Section 2 deals with human trafficking. It deals wth
prostitution, but also adult entertainnent--forcing soneone to
work through force, or threat of force. Wen speaking about
prostitution you are only speaking tal king about AS 11.41. 360.

M5. CARPENETI replied there is a crime in Title 23 dealing with
forced l|abor. She said DOL has suggestions. For exanple, the
forced | abor of young children in Title 23 for comercial sex is
a class C felony. She agreed that prostitution does not deal
with labor. The problem in the state is not the trafficking,
it's the prostitution. People aren't found and noved from one
pl ace to another; they are found in one place and victim zed.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if she could go back over the last five years

and let the commttee know how many trafficking prosecutions
t here have been and how many prostitution prosecutions.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- March 30, 2011



SENATOR COGHI LL clarified how many charges, versus convictions.

M5. CARPENETI said that there are sonme concerns about the second
degree | anguage, which DOL found to be overbroad. "Entices" is a
very broad word.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he and his staff have been working
with Ms. Carpeneti.

2:56:41 PM
QUI NLAN STEINER, Director, Alaska Public Defender Agency, said
he has the sanme concerns that M. Carpeneti expressed.

Definition of these words beconmes quite broad. Enticing does not
inply changing soneone's mnd or forcing an individual to do
something other than sinply offering an enticenent. "Mve from
one place to another”™ mght run into some constitutional
probl ens. The conbination of the three concepts causes him sone
concern on how this m ght be charged.

2:58: 52 PM
DOUG GARDI NER, Director, Legislative Legal Services, introduced
hi rsel f and said he was avail able to answer questions.

CHAIR FRENCH said that Senator W el echowski says that the word
enticed cones fromstatutes in other states.

MR. GARDNER replied this term cones fromthe on-line statute in
existing Alaska Statutes. He said he does not have a specific
definition for entice, and is not aware of any case law in the
state that defines this. He noted that Senator Coghill mnade a
good point; what would happen if you noved an underage person
within the state for sexual purposes, but DOL was unable to
prove there was sone type of agreenment for prostitution. In that
case, DOL mght actually be better off wth the proposal for
pronoti ng human trafficking.

3:01: 34 PM

Chair French announced he would hold SB 110 in conmttee.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 3:01 p. m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- March 30, 2011



